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SUBJECT: Storm Water Enforcement Strategy

FROM: Michael B. Cook, Di
Office of Wastewster Enforcement and Compliance

Frederick F. Stehl Juus.d_. ~’/,'
Eaforcement Counsel for Water

TO: Water Management Division Directors
Regions [-X

Regional Counsels
Regions [-X

Attached is the Storm Water Enforcement Strategy for FY [994-1995. This srruteny
incorporates comments received from Regions and States on two draft versions as weil a5 nout 5y
an EPA/State Storm Water Workgroup. The Workgroup meeting in February included
representatives from Headquarters, three Regions, and two States.

The strategy focuses on getting regulated entities “into the system” by identfying ind
taking action against Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) entities and facilities e
have not filed a permit spplication. While the approach to dealing with the MS4 universe s
relatively struightforward, the large remaining aumber of regulated facilities requires that we Juliz
different spproaches than we have in the past to deal with noncompliance. Some approaches
utilize "sweeps” which coocentrate activity in a watershed or geographic location. Such xus.ties
may be mailings, telephons canvassing or inspections and then publicstion of these actvites n
order to give visibility to the program. Regions will also want t0 review any active judicial .23
to determine whether a facility is subject to the storm water regulations, coordinate with
municipalities regarding facilities within its jurisdiction, and inquire as to the status of 2 'ac:irv s
permit application during routine NPDES inspectons. Citizen complaints and contact »'th xad
sediment/erosion coatrol programs will also be an important source of informatioa for corsratwn
sites.
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Three points from the strategy are worth highlighting: 1) Section 308 letters may be used
10 request the submittal of a NOUpermit application from more than nine addressees nationwide:;
2) a storm water discharge need oot be observed in order to determine inclusion in the program
(but evidence of a conveyance for & discharge must exist), and: 3) failure o apply for a permit is a
violadoa of Section 308, as this section requires reports or other information o0 carry out Section
402.

Although this strategy was deveioped for use by EPA Regions, States may want to adopt a
similar approach to enforcement. Several Regions have begun complisnce/enforcement activities
and we need to share information about Regional as weil as Stass activities. The National Storm
Water Coordinators’ Meeting, scheduled for February 2-4, 1994 in Washington, DC, will be an
excellent opportunity to exchange idess and experiences about the compliance/enforcement issues
of the program.

Finally, we want to thank Gerry Levy of Regioa [ for his participstion as leader of the
Storm Water Workgroup. If you have any questions regarding the strategy, contact David Lyoas
at (202)-260-8310 or Joha Lyou st (202)-260-8177.

Attachment

cc: Compliance Branch Chiefs, Regiocas [-X
Permits Branch Chiefs, Regioa [-X
Water Branch Chiefs, ORC, Regioas [-X
Storm Water Coordinstors, Regions [-X



STORM WATER ENFORCEMENT STR

FY 1994-1998

Summasry
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The goau this enforcement sTalegy is: CQWaVIs ang conuwent enrorcement against
non-complying priority sorm water dischargers used in combination with incentive measures o
achieve compliance. Full participation and compliancs by the entire regulated community is the
long term goal of this strategy, as it is for all the Agency’s enforcement swategies. Although this
su'mgywudevelopd formbyEPARemmdePDESStuummmadopn
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Outreach has been the primary mechanism used thus far o achieve compliance. To provide
for a nationally coordinsted effort, starting in FY 1994, we will increass the use of compiiance
monitoring and enforcement to obtin compliance. The compliance/enforcement priorities for the
program in FY 1994-199S are identification of and action against: 1) municipal separate storm
sewesynm(M&s)mﬁamm&ﬂdmwlﬁmumlmmapphmom

7\ nanln.d facilitias ahich failad m'olv for a mn and are owunside the nmuhmn- of a
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jurisdiction of a regulated MS4.

m“ymwwmmiummnbuuuwonm
principies: 1) integration of storm water complisnce/enforcement activities into NPDES and other
media inspection activities: 2) use of publicity to maximize the impect of any enforcement
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The size of the regulated universe far exceeds that of the traditional NPDES program. Therefore,
Regions and States are encouraged to make use of new approaches to enforcement and share
information with each other about what works and what doesa't.

This strategy discusses the complisnce/enforcement activities to identify non-filers. use of
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STORM WATER ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY
FY 1994-1998

I. Storm Water Program Backgrouad

A. General

Pollutants in storm water discharges from many sources are largely uncontrolled. The
National Water Quality [nventory: 1990 Report to Congress provides a general assessment of
mqmﬁwhadonbimhlmwmdbySMumumdbySﬁmSOS(b)ot'tht
Clean Water Act (CWA). The report indicates that spproximately 30% of identified cases of wate
quality impeirment are attributable to storm water discharges. States identified a number of major
sources of storm water runoff that cause water quality impeets, including separsts storm sewer
systems, and construction, wasts dispoeal, and resource extraction sitss.

The Federal Water Pollution Coatrol Act of 1972 prohibits the discharge of aay poilutant
waters of the United States from a point source unless the discharge is authorized by a Narional
Pollymant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. Efforts to improve water quality under
the NPDES program wraditionally have focused on reducing pollutants in discharges of industial
process wastewatsr and from municipal sewage trestment plants. Efforts w0 address storm water
discharges under the NPDES program hsve generally been limited to certain industrial categories
with effluent limits for storm water.

[n response to the need for comprehensive NPDES requirements for discharges of storm
water, Congress amended the CWA in 1987 to require EPA to establish s two-phased NPDES
permutting approach (0 address storm wazer discharges. To implement thess requirements, on
November 16, 1990 EPA published initial permit application requirements for certain categones o
storm water discharges associsted with industrial activity and discharges from municipai separate
storm sewer sysierns (MS4s) located in municipelities with a population of 100,000 or more.
Storm water discharge permits will provide a mechanism for monitoring the discharge of pollutant
to waters of the United States and for establishing source coatrols where needed.

The following storm water discharges are covered under Phase [ of the program:

1) A discharge which has been permitted prioe to February 4, 1987";

2)Smmﬁmmmm4mmuw
categories identified narratively and by Standard Industrial Classification (SIC)
codes;

3) Discharges from large MS4s (systems serving a population of 250,000 or more) and

' EPA has established effluent guideline limitations for storm water discharges for en
subcategories of industrial dischargers: cement manufacturing, mineral mining and processing.
feedlots, fertilizer manufacturing, pewoleum refining, phosphats manufacturing, steam elecuic.
coal mining, ore mining and dressing, and asphalt Most of the existing facilites in these
subcategories already have a permit which addresses storm water discharges.
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medium MS4s (sysnems serving a populatian of 100,000 or more but less than 250.000:

1) Discharges which are designated by the permitting authority because the discharge
contribues to a violstion of a water quality standard or is a significant polluter of
waters of the United States.

All other storm water discharges fall under Phase [I of the program. A September 1992
FMWN««WMMWMWMHmquu
selected as priorities, how 0 coatrol sources, and when the Phase' [I program should be
unplemented.

B. Permits for Municipal Separate Sterm Sewer Systoms (MS4)

A municipal separste storm sewer system (MS4) is defined as any conveyance or system of
conveysnces that is owned or operstad by & Stass or local government entity designed for
collecting and coaveying storm water which is aot part of a Publically Owned Treatment Works
(POTW). As of November 1993, approximately 790 MS4 entities have been identified as having
to apply for a permit. Natioawide, thers will be approximately 265 permits 0 address the MS4
universe sincs some permits will cover more than one permittes. The reguiatioas do not apply w
discharges from combined sswer systems or small MS44’ (serving a popuiation under 100,000).

Part 2 permit applications for large MS4s were 0 be submitted by Novembes 16, 1992 and
by May 17, 1993 for medium MS4s. Permits are to be issusd one year from the Part 2 permit
application date. I[n noa-approved NPDES States, Regions process the spplications. The suanne
stipulates that the permits must: 1) effectively prohibit aoo-sorm waser discharges into storm
sewers; and 2) require controis to reduce the discharge of pollutants w0 the Maximum Extent
Practicable (MEP), including compliance with water quality standards.

MS4 permictses will also have responsibility for establishing and administering storm water
management programs to coatrol discharges (including discharges associsted with industrial
activity from reguiated facilities), prohibiting illicit discharges, requiring compliance, and carrving
out inspections, surveillance, and moaitoring. EPA promuigated reguistions oa November !6.
1990 requiring MS4 permittess t0 submit an annual status report by the aaniversary of the date of
the issuance of the permit to reflect the development of their storm water management program.
The reports will be used by the permitting authority to aid in evaluating compliance with pernut
conditions and where necsssary, to modify the permit 0 address changed conditions. The annual
report will contain at least the following information: the stams of implementing the compounents
of the program that are established as permit conditions; proposed changes to the program.
revisions to the assssmnent of controls and fiscal analysis; summasy of data, including moaitonng
data, accumulsted throughout the yesar; annual expenditures and budget for the upcoming vear. a
summary describing the oumber and narure of enforcement actioas, inspections, and public
education programs; and identification of water quality improvements or degradation.

! Some small MS4 entities have been designated as storm water permiftees c:ther
individually or as co-permittees.
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C. Facility Permits for Storm Water Discharges Associnted with Laduseria) Activity

The term ‘SOrm water discharge associated with industrial activity’ is defined a3 the
discharge from say comveyance wauwfmmummmmwmmwch
is directly relsted W manufacturing, processing, or raw materials storage aress st an industrial
plant. Eleven categosies of facilities that have a point source storm water discharge associated
with industrial activity discharging to waters of the US must apply for coverage. (Attachment A)
The application deadline for most-permit applications was October 1, 1992. Facilities that
discharge into & small, medium, or large MS4 are considered direqt dischargers and are also
required 0 submit signed copies of the permit applicaticn to the operstor of the MS4. Discharges
of storm water t0 & combined sewer system or POTW are excluded.

The NPDES regulatory scheme provided three potential routss for facilities o apply for
permit coverags for storm water discharges associsted with indusrial activity:

1) [ndividual Permit- applications for thess permits are processed in the Regions for
noo-approved NPDES States;

2) Group Application- provided an alternative mechanism for groups with a sufficiently
similar discharge 0 apply for permit coverage; 0 date, 750 group applications have
been submitted to Headquarters representing 40,000 facilities ia 31 industrial sectors;
a separate general permit to cover facilities in the noa-approved NPDES States will be
issuad by EPA.

3) General Permit- intended to initially cover the majority of storm water discharges
associated with industrial activity in non-spproved NPDES States; approximately 60.000
facilities have submitted 8 Notice Of [ntent (NOI) o be covered under general permuts
issued by NPDES States and approximately 25,000 facilities hsve subeitted NOIs (o0 be
covered in the non-epproved NPDES States; facilities submit an NOI to an EPA
contractor for processing to obwin coverage under the federal genersl permit

General permits, & & minimum, require development of a storm waser pollution prevennon
plan (SWPPP) to reducs pollutant loedings at s facility’s site and an annual compliance evajuation
of the SWPPP. Facilities were required to prepare their SWPPP by April |, 1993 and implement
it by October 1, 1993. Certnin facilities are required to monitor storsh water discharges semi-
annually and report snoually while others are required to monitor annually but not submut a
discharge monitoring report (DMR). [t is estimated that 3,800 facilities in the 12 non-approved
NPDES Stutas and 12,000 facilities in approved NPDES Statss are required to monitor.

D. Facility Permits for Storm Water Discharges From Coastruction Sites

A subss of regulsted facilities is conszucton sitss for which & separate general permut has
been issued. The NOI requires certification that a SWPPP has been prepared for the site. and such
plan complies with approved Stats and/or local sediment and erosion plans or permits and/or storm
water management plans or permits.

Owner/Operstors of regulstad construction sites (disturbances over S acres) were required «
obtain coverage under an individual or general permit by October |, 1992 where disturbances
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commenced before October 1, 1992. For iisturbances commencing after October 1, 1992, an
owner/operator i required to apply for general permit coverage at least 48 hours priot to the start
of consoucton tq“ﬁa or 90 days prior to the start of coaswruction activites for coverage under
an individual permit.

[L Compliance Activities and Program Priorities

A. General
Fummwhmmmhhﬁﬁuoflmhmﬁaﬁon.afmmm
do so allows a facility or MS4 entity (0 escape regulstory scrutiny. Therefore, the compliance/

enforcement priorities in the esrly stages of the storm water program-—-through FY 1994-1995--are
the identification of:

[) MS4s that have failed to submit a timely or compiets Part 2 permit application (or
Part | application for MS4s that are designated at a future dats);

2) regulated facilities that have failed to apply for a permit and are outside of the
jurisdiction of a regulated MS4, and;

3) regulated facilities that have failed to apply for a permit and are within the
jurisdiction of a regulated MS4.

Review of DMRs, SWPPPy, and other permit requirements for every facility is not a hugh
priority activity for FY 1994 and [995. However, there msy be circumstances under which
Regions and States will want to closely monitor a facility’s compliance with the storm water
permit and to take action for failure to comply with that permit Usually, this would be a case
where non-compliancs is contributing 10 an environmental problem.

Given the level of funding aviilabie for storm water enforcement, we will need to be
efficient and innovative in our mouitoring and enforcement spproeches. To that end, every effort
should be made o integrase storm watsr compliance activities inso existing programs within and
outside of the NPDES program.

The goal for FY 1994 and again in 1995 is that esch Region undertake at least one "sweep’
in each vear 1o identify snd enforcs against regulsted facilities that have failed to apply for a
permit.  The goal of this effort is to persuads other non-filers to voluntarily submit permit
applications as wull as 0 solve environmental problems. The Regional spprosch shouid be
described in & Starm Water Work Plan. This Storm Water Work Plan can be incorporated in the
Strategic Plan to bs submitted by each Region for FY 1994,

The Regional sweep might target high priority watersheds, geographic locations. or a
category of facilities to identify noo-filers. The decision of which specific areas to target and the
type and scope of activity is left to the Regions, aithough some preference should be given (0
addressing storm water problems in high priority watersheds, Where all the States in a2 Region
have approved NPDES programs, the Region should work with at least one Stats to conduct 2
storm water effort in that Region.
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As with other new programs, it is important to look for and widely publicize signarure
enforcement cases in the early suges of the program. The use of a "sweep"-whether one
particular activity or combination of suggested activities—offers an exceilent opportunity for
publicizing the Agency’s and States’ enforcement efforts in the ares of sorm waner,

This suategy does aot address the issus of data collection and maintenance. However, 3
long term goal of the enforcement program will be development of an inventory of endties
regulated by the program. The Compliance [nformation and Evaluation Branch has completed a
Draft Feasibility Study which will be sent to the Regions for review. The proposed system
solution is continued use of PCS to rack the storm water inventory.

One final component of the srategy is o provide positive incentives for compliance to
compliment the enforcement program. There already exists a National Storm Water Awards
Program to recognize MS4 entities and facilities with industrial activity that are responsibly
addressing their storm water obligations. The Regions and States might consider adopung such
programs at their levels as weil. [n addition, Regions and States should continue to take every
opportunity to explain the requirements of the storm water program to the regulated communty.

B. Muaicipal Storm Sewer Systems

Part 2 applications for large MS4s were required to be submitted by November 16, 1992
and for medium MS4s by May 17, 1993. Regions should be monitoring the MS4s for compliance
with the appropriats deadline. Where the entity responsible for submission of*zn MS4 applicanoa
has not complied with a deadline, the Regioa should address this noacompliance as a top
enforcement priority in the storm water program. Regions msy begin with an informal actioa but
should escalate 1o formal action if compliance is not achieved within 90 days.

To dats, no MS4 permits in non-approved NPDES States have been issued. [t is
anticipated that compliance monitoring of these permits will be more difficult than tradiuonal
NPDES permits dus to the newness of the storm water program in general, uniqueness of each
MS4 permittes’s approach to storm water management and lack of easily evaluated quannuave
requirements of the permit. Because of these difficult implementation issues, Regional
compliance/enforcement staff are encouraged to work with the permit staff to ensure the
enforceability of the MS4 permits.

Annual reports submitted by MS4s should provide the permirting authority informatos oca
successes, failures and extemt of enforcement actvities. [t is recognized that some MS4s are 2 U
process—-and may be for soms time—of developing the legal muthocity to implement a local
enforcement program for storm water discharges from facilities. Asssssing compliance with WS4
permits will be left for FY 1995 and beyond. However, it is suggested that where deficiencies are
idenufied in the snmual report that will take over one yesr to correct, a timetable for correcnon be
embodied in an eaforceabls schedule. Discreton is left o the Regions as o whether 1o addrems
these problems n FY 1994-1998.

C. Facilities with Sterm Water Discharges Associated with [ndustrial Activiey
Outreach activities by the Headquariers Permits Division and Regions have been the
primary method of encouraging faciliies o comply with the permit applicstion process and pevrut

tequirements in the non-approved NPDES Sutes. Examples of ongoing outresch acuvices. A
Regions and States include: Storm Water Workshops conducted in coordination with or comhucied
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via ade orgapizations: Mailings of Fact Sheets, General Permit, and/or Guidance Documens
followed up with phoae calls or visits to the site; and the EPA National Storm Water HOTLINE

ARer the first quarter of FY 1994, compliance and enforcement saff should increase the.r
focus on locating reguiated facilities that have failed to file 2 permit application/NOI and that are
outside of the jurisdiction of a reguisted MS4. To the extent possible, the Regions should
integrate these efforts with other NPDES compliance activities and multi-media program
operations. .

There are several information sources that can be used to develop a list of facilities that are
potentially subject to the regulstions. Some sources are:

Toxics Release [nventory to identify SARA Title [II facilities:

Lists of NPDES or other eaviroamental regulatory program permittees;
Telephons books;

Municipal pretreatment records;

Trade Association membership lists;

Job Servicw Employment Service listings; and

Local azhorities which issus buildings permits.

EPA Headquarters provides a list of NOI submittals for non-spproved NPDES States on a
moathly basis to the Regions and has an inclusive list of facilities that participated in the group
application process. The group application list identifies both curreat participents (40,000
facilities), as weil as facilities that are no longer using the group application mechanism (25.000
faciliies). The group applicstion list will be available when the general permit becomes !inai.
Data from the NOI list and group spplication list can be compared to that of a compiled list of
facilities that potentially are subject to the regulations from the above mentioned information
sources. -

The Regions should consider for FY 1994 and 1995, the activities below to identfy
facilities that have failed to comply with the permit application process and should publicize
compliance and enforcement actions after they have been councluded to give visibility to the storm
water enforcement program.

Mailings: (£ EPA has reason to believe that a regulated facility has failed to apply for a permit.
(for example, a regulsed indusry’s name does not appear on any permit spplication list) a Section
308 letter cam be semt %0 the facility along with a Fact Shest and NOUpermit application. The
letter should stase thet the permit application be filled out by a dass cerwin if the regulations
apply.’ [f a facility responds indicating that there is no point source discharge and therefore not

} A Section 308 letter requesting that more than nine addressees nationwide fill out
anything other than a NOUpermit applicauca form may require approval from OMB per
requirements of the Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA). For exampie, EPA cannot request 3
certification of non-applicability’ from more that nine addressees nationwide. These
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Judiciai Case Review: Municipai® and noo-municipal judicial cases that are active or are beung
developed for noo-storm water NPDES violations should be reviewed to determine whether or not
the facility needs a NPDES permit for storm water discharges and if so, whether or oot 2 permit
application has been submiued. [f it is determined that the facility failed to file an application the
the complaint can be amended toinclude ‘failure to apply for a permit’ or ‘discharge without a
permit’. The decision 1o amend the existng complaint of issue a seperaze AO requiring
compliance or APO should be made oo a case-by-cass besis. However, considering these ficilitie:
are familisr with EPA reguiatory programs, amending an existing complaint may be appropriate
action.

Telephone Canvassing: Phone calls to facilities potentiaily subject to the regulations explairung
the storm water program with jons t0 determine inclusion in the program or as a follow-up tc
a mailing strategy can be . [nformation request lettars can then be sent based on the
facility’s response.

Field [nspections: For purposes of identifying facilities that have failed to apply for a storm wate
permit, Regions may chooss to focus their inspection activity within watersheds, or in areas with
water quality-reiatad problems dus in part to storm water sources. If a facility~has applied foc a
permit, the inspector should request 1o see the SWPPP to verify its existence and impiementation

NPDES compliance inspections/Multi-media inspections: To the extent possible, NPDES
inspectors or inspectors from other media should compiets & storm water screening checklist while
in the field to verify whether the facility is covered by storm water requirements. The storm wate

reswrictions do not apply if the PRA enforcement exception spplies. Also, the OMB contoi
number for NPDES permit spplications is 2040-0086 (expirstion date August 31, 1995) and
should be displsyed on Section 308 letters requesting submittal of a storm water permut
applicstion.

* Category (ix) of facilities which must submit spplications for storm water permruts:
Treamnent works treating domestic sewage ot any other sswage sludge or wastewater Teamment
devics or sysem, used in the storage, eatment, recycling, and reciamation of mumucipal or
domestic sewage, including lands dedicated to the disposal of sswags siudge that are located
within the confines of the facility, with a design flow of | MGD or more, or required o have
an approved pretrestment program under 40 CFR Part 403. Not included are farm lands.
domestic gardens, or lands used for siudge management where sludge is beneficially reused and
which are not physically located in the confines of the facility, or areas that are in compliance
with Section 405 of the CWA.

' Telephone surveys are subject to the same¢ OMB/PRA approval as Section 308 lemers.
Questions requiring more than nine surveyees nationwide provide more information than «nat
is necessary to fill out an NOUpermit application may require approval.
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checklist in the multi-media screening inspections can be used for this purposs. NPDES progran.
staff may conduct aa in~depth storm water evaluation while they are at the facility for other
purposes.

Routine Eaforcement Coataet: When meeting with & facility for other enforcement issues,
Compliance Officers can inquire s to the status of the facility’s compliance with the storm water
regulations. A field inspector cazr make inquiries withous going through s detailed checklist of the
need for a permit or compliance with the permit. If it is determingd that a facility should obeaun
storm water coverage oc is not complying with & permit (for example, the facility has not
developed 3 SWPPP) enforcement should procesd on a case-by-case basis.

Municipal Coordinstien: The Part | permit spplication required am MS4 entity 0 provide the
location and NPDES permit aumber of agy known discharge 10 the sorm sewer system (40 CFR
122.26.d.1.iii.B.(4)). Also, the Part 2 permit application required an MS4 entity 10 provide an
inventory, organized by watershed, of the name, address and description (such as SIC code) of the
principal products or services provided by each facility which may discharge storm water
associated with industrial activity to the systsm (40 CFR 122.26.d.2.ii).

All facilities with discharges of storm water associsted with industrial activity through an
MS4 will be subject o local ordinences implementing management programs, as weil as 0 the
terms of a federal permit. The list of facilities discherging into an MS4 can be matched with a list
of NOly/permit applications received to verify complimace with the spplication process. Although
the MS4 entity does not have authority to eaforce the federal permit application requirements or
federal permit, compliance and enforcement activities of the local program will be done by the
MS4 entity. However, it should be nowd that the MS4 entity may not be able to enforce (s own
program for some time because it presently lacks necessary local legal authority or—in the case of
medium size municipalities~the permit will not be effective until May 17, 1994.

An MS4 entity can refer a cass of a facility that has failed o apply for a federal permut oc
suspected non-complisnce with a federal permit to EPA. Although compliance and enforcement
efforts for this group of facilities is not top priority, the Region may want w0 include them for
targeted activities but, should coordinate activities with the municipality to avoid duplicauca of
efforts.

D. Coastructien Sites .

The consruction industry in general is regulated at the Stase and local level. A May 1990
Survey by the Maryland Department of Eavironmental Resources (Attachment B) indicates s
thirteen Stasss bave mendssory sediment/erosion control programs of SOrmM WEler mansgement
programs, two Stmes bave programs for portions of the Stams, sod an additionsl nine States have
developed guidsace for local government use. Most large mumicipalities, which will eventually
include all medium and large MS4e, have some typs of sediment/erosion and storm water congrol
program. The general approsch, then, for conszruction sites will be to defer to local or Suse
agencies where there are effective and equivalent programs in piace.

Generally, construction sites are highly visible, capital intensive operations that have s »:¢h
potential for environmental degradation. Because of their high visibility, citizen complaunts . “e
expectedmouthnﬂd:odutypaofindusuﬁdacﬁviﬁamdmmfnlaawmt'oc
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ideatifying potential violators. Regions should either refer complaints 0 local gams ‘ol
up duecdy Whare Stats or effective local programs do not exist, Regions :hom pnonu'o;g rollo
ugpermmn_d construction sites the same way as other regulated facilities. Again. failure to comply
with permit requirements should be addressed at the Regions’ discretion during FY 1994-1995.

1. Enforcement Approach

A. Establishment of & Violatiea

Two criteria must be met for a facility to be subject to the storm water regulations:
1) the industrial activity at a facility must be described (usually by SIC code) in 40 CFR 122.26 of
the regulstions; and 2) the facility must have & point source discharge to waters of the United
States either directly or through a separats sorm sewer system, . The question of whether a storm
water discharge must be observed by an inspector to determins inclusion in the program has been
raised. The Office of Enforcement has advised that s facility’s inclusion in the program is not
dependant on whether a discharge from a point source has been obssrved. Sectioa 502 of the
CWA defines any point source to be ‘any discernable, coafined, and discrets conveyancs . . . .
from which pollutants are or may be discharged’. Therefore, an actual discharge need ot be
observed but there must be evidencs of some conveyance for pollutants when s storm event

occurs. .

A second question frequently raised is: How to cite ‘failure to spply for & permit’ as a
violation? Section 308 of the CWA requires an ownet/operstor of a point source 10 ‘make such
reports or provide such informstion’ the administrstor requires to carry out Sectioa 402 or any
requirement established under Section 402. The permit application reguistions were promuigated
pursuant to both Sections 308 and 402 and thus the permit spplication is considered informauon
required to implement Section 402 of the Clean Water Act. Since the permit application
regulations have beea published in the November 16, (990 Federal Register, any regulated facility
that failed to submit a permit application is automastically in violation of Section 308. Wording of
any notce of violation, AO, or APO should therefore cits ‘failure to apply for a permit’ as a
violation of Section 308. ~

As an alternative to 8 violation of Section 308, a facility can B in violation of Section 301
for ‘discharge without a permit’ providing there is evidence of a conveyamcs for poilutants from
the industrial activity areas of the facility and an actual discharge (i.e., a precipitation event
causing a dischargse) has occurred.

B. Overall Strategy

As indicated eartier in this strategy, the enforcement priorities for the storm water program
for FY 1994 and 1995 are to address MS4s that have not applied for & storm watsr permut on a
timely basis, and to identify and enforce, as necessary, where facilities with industrial acuwiry have
failed to apply for a permit--with priority given to facilities outside the jurisdiction of a regulated
MS4. The level of activity with regard 0 the assessment of compliance with existing permus will
be left to the discretion of the Region.

As s szategy for addressing industrial facilities which have failed to apply for a permit as
required, each Region is asked to undertake some actvity annually in 1994 and again in 1995,
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The surTcse oAy seuvity s faotoid--i0 icdress ¢envirornentdl Sropiems iad o e 15 1)
vehicie for publicizing EPA’s commuunent to enforcing storm water requirements. thus <reaung a
deterrent 10 noocompiiance. The design and scope of activities is left w the discreton of the
Region. [t could be organized on a watershed basis or it might address a category of facilities
which is of coocarR. Whataver the design. it should be significant enough 0 serve as a vehjcle for
publicizing Regional activity in the storm water ares through such means as a press release, press
briefing, Tade press publications or other means the Region may choose.

As 2 general tule, the Eaforcement Management System establishes the principie of
escalation of enforcement response for continuing, uncorrected aoncompliance. This storm water
strategy, in fact, recommends beginning with informal enforcement and escalating the severity of
the response when an MS4 entity fails w0 submit compiete permit applications on a timely basis.
However, because of the limited resources available to address regulsted facilities, one of the
principles on which this strategy is built is that the maximum possible deterrent effect be achieved
with any single enforcement action. For that resson, this strategy recommends, but does not
require, the use of penalties as a sanction when a facility has failed ®© spply for a permit. Of
course, any enforcement action thst is initisted shouid taks into sccount the circumstances
surrounding the violation, for equitable trestment of violstors. During this initial phase of the
storm water enforcement program, when any facility submits & permit application volunarily,
without having EPA invest resources to find the facility, the Regions may chooss io forego or
reduce penaities on a case-by-cass basis, theredy providing an incentive to other facilities o
comply with permit application requirements.

C. Expedited APOs

Field citations® are currently being utilized by other enviroamental programs oa the
Federal, Stats, and local levels and are useful in addressing many prevalent, clear-cut violations
that are relatively easy to correct. While the Water Program does not currently have field citaton
authority, the basic administrative compliance and penalty order authorities can be used in more
efficient ways. :

There are several ways to make the APO more efficient—t0 expedite the APO:
1) issue APOs for facilities with the same violation at approximately the same time so that a single
30-day public notice can be used’; 2) issue a complaint and a proposed consent order at the same
time; and ) standardize penaity amounts to be assessed, besed oa the economic benefit for
failure to submit a permit application’, to avoid recaiculation for each facility’. Existing

* ‘Field citation’ as used in this strategy is an APO issued in the fleld uneacumbered by 2 30-day
public notice period. For this strategy, the term 'Expedited APO’ will be used. Resuthorization of
the CWA may include Field Citation authonty.

" When the administrative penalty complaint is first issued, an administrative record should be
simultaneously opsned st the Regional Office pursuant to proposed 40 CFR Section 28.16.

' Headquarters may develop a matrix which could be used to determine the economic benefit and
gravity component of the penaity using a small, medium, and large facility. [a the intenm. no
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delegations of authority limit the issuance of APOs tw the Branch Chief level. As a result,
inspectors cannot be authorized o issue APOs until that delegation is changed. There are.
however, other way3 to speed up the APO and AO issuance process. These might include: faxing
of violation peperwork (o the office by the inspector for required signatures or phoaing-in of
violatons by inspectars for inmediate penaity issuance from the office. A combination of one or
more of the above approaches should result in & less resource intensive, more efficient penaity
issuance process.

Anached for your information is a copy of a public ootice used by one Region to cover
multiple violating facilities, as well a3 the simultaneous issuance of a complaint and 2 proposed
consent decres. (Attachment C) A letter o the complainant would specify that the consent order
will become final after signature by both parties without further agency action. if no public
comments are received. The letter would explain the sdministrative process, the requirement w0
publish the proposed order for public comment, and the respoadent’s right within 30 days to either
return the signed consent order with psyment or request & hearing.

If the respondent agress to pay the penalty and submits & check before the consent order
can be signed by EPA, EPA can bold the respondent’s penaity psyment check. Where not
prohibited by stats law, the check should be postdated to 45 days after the date of issuance of the
compiaint to allow time for publication of the public notice requesting comments within 30 days.
[f no public comments are received, the proposed order would become final after agency signature
and EPA would process the penalty payment. [f comments are received, the Regional
Administrator or designes would follow established Agency procedures for resolving public
comments. [f the respondent chooses to contest the initial complaint, EPA would adjudicate the
manter under the hearing procedures.

[V. Allocation of Respousibilities

The list below provides & summary of ongoing and future activities to implement tus
strategy.

Headquarters Permits Divisiea

"Continue Storm Water HOTLINE

Continue monthly update of NOI submissions to the Regions (ongoing)

Provide Regions a list of group applicants, current as weil as original participants (upon final
approval of the general permit)

Headquarters Eafercement Sappert Braach

Update the storm water comnponent of NPDES inspector guidance and truining (ongoing)
Develop guidance on storm water data clements and reporting requirements for Regions and
States (mid FY 1994)

settlement should normaily be less than $500 for failure to submit an application and the crcpose
assessment should routinely be $1000 or more, taking into account economic benefit and grav:«<v
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Act as a clearinghouss for succesy/failure of approaches to enforcement/compliance issues of
the storm water program (ongoing) ,

Pursue sweamlining efforts of the APO process such as delegation of authority below DD
level

Headquarters Compliance [aformation Braach
Finalize the Storm Water Feasibility Study Mission Needs Analysis to develop a storm water
racking system (mid FY 1994)

Regioas

Continus outreach efforts

Review MS4 Permits for enforceability

Follow-up on late or incomplets MS4 permit applications

[avestigats local programs that manage storm water discharges from comstruction sites
Undertake one sweep in FY 1994 and again in FY 1995 to identify regulated facilities that have
failed to apply for a permit
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pplications

Industrial Facilities That Must Submit A
for Storm Water Permits (Phase D)
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CWITED STATES IFVIACHMENTAL FROTECTION MERCY TACRINT

DATS OF WOTICEel _____....]

PUBSLIC JOTICE SVIBERS [ ]

COMMBN? PRAICO OPEN WTTNS [ ...}

ACTIONS WOTICH OF YROSOEED ASSESSKENY CPF GLEAR WATRER AT SICTION
309(0) CLASS I ADMINISTRATIVE PREALTY AND OPIOATUNITE 70 OONMXINT

572 I8 AUTECAISED VUDER S30TI0N 309(6) OF TEE CLEAE VATESR
AC?, 33 U.8.8. §1319(€), 70 ASS3SS A CIVIL PRNALET AFTER
YROVIDING TEB PERSCH SUNICT 70 TRB JENALEY NOTICS OF TEB
ROPCSED YENALSY AND TEB OPIORTUNITY 08 A REEAAING, AED APTIR
PROVIDING INTEARSTED FEASONS PUILIC NOTICE OF TER FROTCEED
PENAIZY AND A ARASOEASLE OPFORTUNITE 20 COMMENT O ITS ISSUVANCS.
CNDER SSCTION 309(6), ANY PERSON FEO WITHOU® AUTEORISATION
DISCEAMES A JOLLOTANR 70 A MAVIGALLD WATER, ’ _"W043 VIRXS AX3
DRPINES I¥ S5CTICN 3508 OF TEB A0T%, 39 C.0.0¢ § .. .8, AT B9
ADMZNTSTRATIVELE ASSESSED A CIVIL PENAMEY GF UF %0 §35,000 3T
3. CLASS T FROCSEBINGS TOR S3CTION 300(€) OF TEE GLEAR WATER
AC? ARE CONDUCTED I¥ ACCOADANCE FITR TXB "CONSOLIDATED AULES P
PRACTICE GOVERNING TER ADNINISTRATIVE ASSBSwanny o GLASS I CIVIL
PEILTIES UNDER YRE CLEAM WATER ACT® (YPARG 38%), VEICE TAS 3I%¥
PUBLISEED IN TEB PEDERAL RIGISTES, AT 36 FED. A88. 39.906
(JTLY 1, 1993). TEE FROERAL ARGISTER 18 AVAILAMLE AT MOS? LIDRARIES



eode
UNLESS OTERRNISR NOTED, TEB PUBLIC RECORD FOR TEB FROCEEDING S
LocATED I TR 7D RBGICKAL OFFICS SFSCIFIED ABOVE, AND PILA WVILL
18 Ors® r‘mue INSPRONICE DULING J0EINESS BOUMS.

57 EAS YROVIDED RACE ASSIOUDENT ¥ITE A CSTTLEXENY OFFER OF
1,000 IB AN SPFORS 70 PROMITLY SETTLE THIS MATTER. IN OXDER 1O
PROVIDS OIPORTUNITY FOR IUBLIG CIMENY, BJA VWILL ¥O¥ TALS FIXAL
ACTION IN TEIS PROCEEDING FRICR 70 TEIRFY (30) DAYS ArPsa
ISSUANCS OF TEIS BOTICS.





